
 
 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 

THURSDAY 5 JUNE 2008 
6.00 PM  

 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 5         

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 2 Councillors and 1 Independent Person)  
 
    
 
  Chairman: 

 
The Right Revd Peter Broadbent 

 
Councillors: 

 
Husain Akhtar 
Mrs Kinnear 
Jean Lammiman 
Joyce Nickolay 
 

B E Gate 
Phillip O'Dell 
 

  
 

Independent Persons: Rev Peter Broadbent 
Ms Sheila Darr 
Dr John Kirkland 
Mr Mohammad Rizvi 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Mrs Lurline Champagnie 
2. Tom Weiss 
3. Jeremy Zeid 
4. Mark Versallion 
 

1. Mitzi Green 
2. Asad Omar 
3. - 
 

  
 

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 
Legal and Governance Services Department 

 
Contact:  Pauline Ferris, Senior Professional - Democratic Services (Council) 
Tel:  020 8424 1269    E-mail:  pauline.ferris@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING. 
 IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
THURSDAY 5 JUNE 2008 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Appointment of Chairman:    
 Further to the re-establishment of this Committee at Annual Council on 8 May 

2008, the Committee is asked to appoint a Chairman for the Municipal Year 
2008/09. 
 

2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman:    
 Further to the re-establishment of this Committee at Annual Council on 8 May 

2008, the Committee is asked to appoint a Vice-Chairman for the Municipal 
Year 2008/09.  
 

3. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that 

the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives 

after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member 
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business 
on the agenda after his/her arrival. 

 
4. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

5. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

6. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 4) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2008 be taken as read 

and signed as a correct record. 
 



 

 

7. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 19 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

8. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 16 (Part 4B of the 
Constitution). 
 

9. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure 

Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

10. Protocol for Planning Committees:  (Pages 5 - 22) Enc. 
 Reference from Strategic Planning Committee. 

 
Enc. 11. Establishment of Panel:  (Pages 23 - 26) 

 
12. Ethical Standards:  (Pages 27 - 52) Enc. 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services. 

 
13. Date of Next Meeting:    
 To be held at 7.30 pm on Tuesday 9 September 2008. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



VOL. 7  ST 36  

REPORT OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE  

MEETING HELD ON 17 DECEMBER 2007

Chairman: * The Right Revd Peter Broadbent 

Councillors: * B E Gate 
* Mrs Kinnear 
* Jean Lammiman 

* Joyce Nickolay 
* Phillip O'Dell 

Independent Persons: * Ms Sheila Darr 
* Dr J Kirkland 

* Mr Mohammad Rizvi 

* Denotes Member present 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL 

PART II - MINUTES 

71. Attendance by Reserve Members:   

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance at this 
meeting. 

72. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in 
relation to the business transacted at this meeting. 

73. Arrangement of Agenda:   

RESOLVED:  That all items be considered with the press and public present. 

74. Appointment of Vice-Chairman:

RESOLVED:  To appoint Dr John Kirkland as Vice-Chairman of the Standards 
Committee for the remainder of the Municipal Year 2007/08. 

75. Minutes:

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2007 be taken as 
read and signed as a correct record. 

76. Public Questions:

RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put at the meeting under the 
provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 19. 

77. Petitions:

RESOLVED:  To note that no petitions were received at the meeting under the 
provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 16. 

78. Deputations:

RESOLVED:  To note that no deputations were received at the meeting under the 
provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 17. 

79. Protocol for Councillors' Website:
An officer presented a report of the Director of Business Transformation and Customer 
Services, which set out proposals for a protocol for Councillors writing information 
and/or including material on the Internet such as web logs or blogs.  The Committee 
was requested to approve the protocol and recommend that Council formally adopt the 
Protocol for inclusion in the Council’s Constitution.  

The officer explained that the protocol was based on a series of legislation and advised 
that a protocol was necessary.  One Member expressed the view that Members 

Agenda Item 6
Pages 1 to 4

1



ST 37  VOL. 7    STANDARDS  

needed to be properly supported in updating Internet pages.  This included support 
with technical elements.  

The Chairman noted that blogs were inherently controversial and suggested the option 
of a link to the Councillor blog outside the main Harrow Council website.  An 
independent member expressed concern about Part 4D and 4E of the protocol, which 
he felt could lead to complaints.  

In response to questions, the officer confirmed that: 

 information regarding Councillors was available on the Harrow Council Website 
but it was not in an easily accessible format; 

 Harrow was moving towards ‘lively’ web pages and then blogs; 

 work would be within the existing Web budget.  

An independent member expressed the view that a complete ‘commitment sheet’ was 
necessary, to ensure the project was properly funded.  The Chairman noted that it was 
appropriate for the issue of funding to be referred to the relevant Portfolio Holder.  
Some Members expressed concern over the checking of the Web pages and 
expressed further concerns about the proposals. 

The Director of Legal and Governance Services questioned whether the protocol would 
be acceptable to Members of the Committee for just the ‘lively’ web pages.  The 
Chairman expressed the view that the protocol should be re-considered once the web 
pages were active.  The Chairman noted that it would be useful for Members of the 
Committee to look at the London Borough of Lambeth’s Website.  One Member 
expressed the view that the proposed protocol could be built into Members’ Code of 
Conduct training. 

RESOLVED:  That, in light of the comments made in the preamble above, the protocol 
not be approved, but be referred to the Director of Business Transformation and 
Customer Services and the Member Development Panel for further consideration, and 
that consideration should include whether a better way forward is to have links to 
external sites for political matters, the practice and experience at Lambeth, funding and 
training for Councillors.

80. Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 - Ethical 
Standards:
The Director of Legal and Governance Services presented a report, which set out the 
measures which the Committee needed to consider resulting from the Local 
Government and Public Health Involvement in Health Act 2007.  

The Director explained that the Standards Board for England intended to scale down 
into a more strategic body.  The Board would eventually only deal with the most serious 
cases and, as a result, the majority of cases would be dealt with by Harrow’s Standards 
Committee.  

The Director stated that the Committee would exercise more functions and therefore 
three Sub-Committees should be established.  He explained that the Committee was 
being asked to establish the Sub-Committees initially but further details could be dealt 
with at a later date. 

Members questioned the arrangements for membership including issues regarding 
Reserve Members.  One Member was of the view that the rules on political 
proportionality did not apply for the Standards Committee. 

Following further discussion it was 

RESOLVED:  That (1) three sub-committees be established to deal with: 

 Filtering of written allegations that a Member or Co-opted member might have 
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct; 

 Requests for review of a decision not to refer a complaint for investigation; 

 Determination of complaints that have been investigated. 

(2)  the Membership of the Sub-Committees be referred to Members and the Director 
of Legal and Governance Services for further consideration. 

2



STANDARDS VOL. 7  ST 38 

81. Feedback on Standards Board Local Filter Pilot Project:
The Director of Legal and Governance Services introduced a report, which set out the 
findings of the Standards Board for England on the Local Filter Pilot Project.  He 
thanked Members who had participated in the Project. 

Following a short discussion, it was 

RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 

(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 7.32 pm, closed at 8.29 pm). 

(Signed) THE RIGHT REVD PETER BROADBENT 
Chairman 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Strategic Planning Committee 

Date: 
 

16th January 2008 

Subject: 
 

Protocol for Planning Committees 

Key Decision:  
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Graham Jones 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Marilyn Ashton 
Planning, Development and Enterprise 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

A.  Protocol for Members and Reserve  
      Members when Dealing with Planning  
      Applications and Lobbying 
B.  Connecting Councillors with Strategic   
      Planning Applications: A Good Practice  
      Guide for London 

 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets out proposed changes to the Protocol for Members and 
Reserve Members when dealing with Planning Applications and Lobbying and 
the Council’s Committee  Procedure Rules 
 
Recommendations:  
 

1. To agree to additional paragraphs as set out in the report as additions 
to the Constitution Committee Procedure Rules and the ‘Protocol for 
Members and Reserve Members when dealing with Planning 
Applications and Lobbying’ to ensure that decisions are properly taken 
for planning reasons.  

2. That the Changes be referred to the Standards Committee and then to 
full Council for approval as it has the effect of amending the Council’s 
Constitution 

 
Reason: To ensure sound and consistent decision making 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 5 to 22

5



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Introductory paragraph 
 
The Protocol for Members and Reserve Members When Dealing with 
Planning Applications and Lobbying was approved by the Development 
Control Committee on the 29th April 2003. A copy is attached at Appendix A. 
 
The content of the protocol remains sound but it is considered that additions 
are required in the interests of better decision making. This is consistent with 
the aims of the protocol to ensure that decisions are not biased, they are 
impartial and they are well founded. 
 
Two additions to the protocol are proposed: 
 

1. To specifically allow for members to have early opportunities for 
engagement on strategic applications. This is designed to ensure that 
members are fully aware of the proposals before they take decisions 

2. To establish a clear process for members voting against officer 
recommendations such that reasons for refusal are clearly stated and 
documented. This also needs to be reflected in the Council’s 
Committee Procedure Rules.   

 
These changes are considered particularly urgent as there are several major 
and complex applications either submitted or expected in the coming months.  
With this in mind it is recommended that the changes should be 
recommended to the Standards Committee on 17 March 2008 and the 
Council on the 17 April  2008. 

 
1.Early Engagement on Strategic Applications 
 
Since 2003 the complexity of the planning process has increased 
considerably particularly in respect of major applications which can require 
Environmental Assessments, Access and Design Statements, Transport 
Assessments, Viability ‘Toolkits’, Energy Statements, Childrens Play 
statements etc etc. The numbers of major applications which are currently in 
the pipeline is far above what has previously been the norm for the authority, 
and the pressure to deal with these in a timely manner within Government 
targets remains. . 
 
To enable members to understand large scale applications and their 
implications the officers consider that they should have the opportunity to ask 
questions, raise issues and meet applicants, both prior to submission and 
between submission and determination. However, to avoid any problems of 
probity this engagement needs to be carefully managed. This approach is 
recommended in a leaflet published by London Councils, The Government 
Office for London and London First in November 2007. (attached Appendix B) 
 
Officers are recommending that applicants for major strategic schemes should 
be invited to make a presentation to members of the Committee and reserves, 
at which they should explain their proposals and answer questions of fact. 
Such presentations may also involve a site visit, and where necessary site 
visits for strategic proposals should be arranged prior to Committee meetings 

6



 

where the proposal is to be considered. At such presentations there should be 
no debate about the merits or otherwise of the scheme.  
 
At least one senior officer should be present at all such meetings and may be 
called upon to answer any factual questions about policy issues etc.  
 
Such meetings can be at either pre- or post-application stages and in some 
instances both may be appropriate. Similar meetings may also be arranged 
for ward/backbench members and members of the Executive. 
 
 
2. Reasons for Refusal against Officer advice 
 
To clearly establish sound planning reasons for refusal for applications where 
officers have recommended approval the following process is recommended: 
 

1. Members who wish to vote against a recommendation should propose 
a motion to refuse, which should be seconded and should state clearly 
the proposed planning reasons for refusal. The motion including the 
reasons will be included in the minutes. 

2. Where such a motion is  carried, the reasons stated will become the 
Local Planning Authority’s reasons for refusing the application. 

3. Where such a motion is  not carried the members supporting the 
motion for refusal may vote against  original officer  recommendation . 

 
4. In the absence of a motion for refusal with clearly stated reasons, 

Members should be aware that a vote against the officer 
recommendation could result in a refusal with no substantive 
justification and potential costs against the Council should this lead to a 
inquiry. 

 
Adherence to this procedure will ensure that the potential danger of an 
application being refused without clear reasons, with the potential risk of the 
Council prejudicing any future appeal, will be avoided.    The quasi-judicial 
nature of SPC and DMC reinforces the importance of having clearly spelt out 
reasons for refusal which are robust, reasonable and sustainable. 
 
Options considered 
 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Committee agree: 
 
To include para 1. Early Engagement on Planning Applications as an 
amendment to the Protocol and para 2. Reasons for Refusal against Officer 
Advice, both as an addition to the Protocol and to the Committee Procedure 
Rules. 
 
 
 
 
 

7



 

Legal Implications 
 
The proposed changes have the effect of altering the Council’s Constitution. 
Accordingly the proposed changes must be agreed by the Standards 
Committee and approved by full Council before they are effective. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications  
 
 
Performance Issues 
 
The proposed additions to the protocol will assist in respect of BV109a 
determination of Major Applications in ensuring they are determined in a 
timely way.  Performance is currently very good with 87% of applications 
determined within 13 weeks for the first 3 quarters of 2007/08.  However to 
maintain this level of performance with the anticipated workload through the 
next year, many of which will have complex S106 agreements, will be very 
challenging.  BV 204  ‘Performance on Planning Appeals’ is below target and 
this resulted in a rebate on the 2007/8 PDG allocation due to the poor 
performance.  Currently 43% of planning appeals are successful compared 
with the national average of 33%.   Introducing the proposed procedure 
should help in ensuring that applications are refused for sound planning 
reasons. 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:…Sheela Thakrar… √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: …7th January 2008 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:   Adekunle Amisu √  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:… 7th January 2008.. 

   
 

 
 
Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

  
 

Name:…Tom Whiting……. √ Divisional Director 
  
Date:     7th January 2008….. 

 (Strategy and 
Improvement) 

 
 
 

8



 

 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 
Contact:   Graham Jones, Director of Planning Development &        
                Enterprise – 020 8420 9317 
 
 
Background Papers:  
 
None 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

APPENDIX TO AGENDA ITEM 11 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 

PROTOCOL FOR MEMBERS AND RESERVE MEMBERS 
WHEN DEALING WITH PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND 

LOBBYING 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
In making any determination under the Planning Acts, Members of the Council sitting on 
the Development Control Committee should have regard to the development plan (the 
Unitary Development Plan) and shall determine applications in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Members must do 
this by balancing the needs and interests of the whole community and of individual 
constituents, alongside the need to maintain an ethic of impartial decision making on what 
may be highly controversial proposals. 
 
The aim of this protocol is to ensure that in the planning process there are no grounds for 
suggesting that a decision is biased, is not impartial or not well founded in any way. 
 
1.2 When does this Code apply? 
 
This Code applies to members at all times when involving themselves in the planning 
process, including planning appeals and planning enforcement.  While this will normally be 
relevant for members (and reserves) on the Development Control Committee, it will also 
apply to all Council members at Council meetings if they exercise any functions of the 
Development Control Committee in determining planning applications and other issues. It 
applies to planning enforcement matters as well as to planning applications 
 
1.3 The requirement for Member training before serving on the Development Control  
Committee 
 
Planning legislation and guidance can be complex.  The Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister (ODPM), the Local Government Association (LGA), the Nolan Committee and the 
Royal Town Planning Institute all recommend that Members who have to make planning 
decisions should be specifically trained.  The ODPM published guidance on Member 
training in May 1998, and the LGA updated its general guidance for Probity in Planning in 
2002. 
 
Members serving on the Development Control Committee must undergo training (which 
may be in a variety of alternative forms) validated and approved by the Planning 
Department before serving on the Committee, and must be updated regularly on changes 
to legislation or procedures. This training will be evidenced by records signed by the 
Member (e.g. attendance book) 

11



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

 
2. Members’ Interests and the Code of Conduct 
 
2.1 Relationship of the Protocol to the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
The Members’ Code of Conduct applies to all their work as Councillors, so members must 
apply the rules in that Code to their activity as a member of the Development Control 
Committee.  Breach of the Code of Conduct may result in a complaint to the Standards 
Board for England.   
 
Members must also apply the rules in this Protocol to their activity as a member of the 
Development Control Committee. The Protocol is a locally agreed document, which means 
Harrow’s Standards Committee will investigate any breach of the rules within it.   
 
Failure to follow the recommendations within this Protocol may also lead to an 
investigation into possible maladministration by the authority. 
 
2.2 The registration of interests 
 
Members must complete a ‘Register of financial and other interests’ form as set down in 
the Code of Conduct. Councillors must review their register entry regularly and notify the 
Monitoring Officer of any change within 28 days. 
 
2.3 Hospitality  
 
Councillors must be very cautious about accepting gifts and hospitality, especially in 
relation to planning applications. The Code of Conduct requires members receiving gifts or 
hospitality (in their capacity as members) over the value of £25, to provide details to the 
Monitoring Officer, for inclusion in the ‘Register of gifts and hospitality’.  This notification 
must be made within 28 days of receiving the gift or hospitality. 
 
2.4 Declaring an interest 
 
Members must consider whether they have an interest in a matter under discussion, and if 
so, what type of interest it is. 
 
A Member may have a personal interest in any matter under discussion: 
 
‘If the matter relates to an interest in respect of which the member has given notice in the 
statutory register of members interests; or  
if a decision upon it might reasonably be regarded as affecting to a greater extent than 
other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the authority’s area, the well being or 
financial position of themselves, a relative or friend, or: 
 
• Any employment or business carried on by such persons; 
• Any person who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
• Any corporate body in which such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or 
• Any body in which the member is required to register in the statutory register of 

interests, in which such persons hold a position of general control or management’. 
 

12



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

Where a member considers he or she has such an interest, he or she must declare it.  The 
disclosure should state the existence and nature of the personal interest at any relevant 
meeting, including informal meetings with officers and other members. 
Declaring a personal interest does not debar the member from participating in the decision 
unless the personal interest is also prejudicial. 
 
A member with a personal interest must consider whether that interest is also prejudicial.   
 
The Code says that a personal interest becomes a prejudicial one: 
 
‘If the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts 
would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the member’s 
judgement of the public interest’. 
 
If a member has such an interest, he or she should not participate in a discussion on the 
matter. The member must state that he or she has a prejudicial interest, state the nature of 
that interest and must then withdraw from the room and must not seek to improperly 
influence a decision on the matter.  
 
There are some exemptions in paragraph 12.2 of the Code, which allow a member with a 
prejudicial interest to continue to participate in the decision. If this is the case the member 
must still declare the prejudicial interest, but state the exception which allows him or her to 
remain and discuss the matter in question.   
However, in order to reduce any suggestion of bias, members should consider carefully 
whether or not it is sensible to continue to take part in a planning decision where their 
prejudicial interest is covered by an exemption. 
 
2.5 Planning applications affecting Members of the Council 
 
If a planning application affects a member, either because they or their family or friends 
own the land or part of the land affected, or the proposal will affect their land or that of their 
family or friends, or they wish to act as an agent for the person(s) making the proposal, 
that member must inform the Chief Planning Officer of the application immediately.  
 
The notification must state the application which affects the member’s land, and the nature 
of the interest. It must be in writing, by letter, fax or e-mail. The notification should be made 
not later than the submission of the application, or as soon as the Member becomes aware 
of it, if s/he acquires such knowledge after submission. 
 
This will enable the Chief Planning Officer to ensure that the interest is included on the 
agenda sheet for the relevant meeting. The interest will be included under the ‘Declaration 
of interests’ heading. . Members must also orally declare the interest at the meeting. 
This will help all members decide, early on, whether or not they can participate in a 
decision. 
 
 
2.6 Members of the Council who are not members of Development Control Committee 
 
Ward members wishing to speak in this capacity at Development Control meeting may do 
so provided they do not have a personal and prejudicial interest.  They will also require the 
agreement of the Committee (Committee Procedure Rule 4.1 refers). 
 

13



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

The member must tell the chair that they wish to speak in that capacity at the start of the 
meeting and must not sit in the member seating area during the meeting so that members 
of the public can clearly see which members are members of the Committee and which 
are not.  
 
A space will be reserved for backbench members at the committee table, and when the 
relevant item is to be discussed, the backbench member will be called to sit at the table, 
will take part in the discussion of that item, and will then withdraw from the table before the 
decision is taken. 
 
3. The roles of members in planning decisions and the role of 
officers in supporting them 
 
3.1 The role of elected Members 
 
Elected members serving on the Development Control Committee determine planning 
applications and enforcement issues.  When members are taking decisions relating to 
planning issues they will listen carefully to all the arguments in favour and against each 
proposal and will: 
 

 Act fairly and openly; 
 Approach each application with an open mind: 
 Carefully weigh up all relevant issues; 
 Consider the professional advice of officers; 
 Determine each application on its own merits; 
 Ensure that there are clear and substantial reasons for their decisions and that these 

are clearly stated; 
 Ensure decisions are proportionate; 
 Ensure respect for human rights. 

 
The basis of the planning system is the consideration of private proposals against wider 
public interests. Much is often at stake in this process, and opposing views may be 
strongly held by those involved. Whilst councillors should take account of these views, 
they must not favour any person, company, group or locality, not must they put themselves 
in a position where they appear to do so.  
The setting of planning policy is the function of the Executive, and members of Cabinet 
must comply with the same criteria when taking planning policy decisions.  Although this 
protocol is specifically intended for those members dealing with planning applications, it is 
generally as relevant to those sitting on the Executive, who should have training in 
planning matters before taking planning decisions. 
 
3.2 The role of officers in relation to member decision making 
 
Officers will advise and assist members in developing planning policy and in determining 
applications and enforcement issues by: 
 

 Providing impartial and professional advice; 
 Making sure all the information necessary for the decision to be made is given; 
 Providing a clear and accurate analysis of the issues; 
 Setting the applications and enforcement issues against the broader Unitary 

Development Plan policies and all other material considerations; 
 Giving a clear recommendation; 

14



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

 Carrying out the decisions of the Development Control Committee; 
 Determining applications under powers delegated to them by the Council. 

 
Where Members have factual questions about development proposals, it is very helpful for 
these to be put to officers, where possible, before the meeting. Not only can officers make 
sure all the information is obtained in response, but it also helps the effectiveness and 
efficiency of the committee meeting.   
 
4. Lobbying (including representation and communication) 
 
4.1 Lobbying of Councillors by applicants or objectors 
 
It is quite common for applicants or other interested parties to wish to discuss a proposed 
development with elected members before the determination of a planning application. By 
the same token, those affected by a proposed decision may seek to influence it through an 
approach to their elected ward councillor or a member of the Development Control 
Committee.  
 
.   
 
Members who are likely to be directly involved in taking planning decisions must, 
therefore, explain to lobbyists that, whilst they may listen to what is said, it prejudices their 
impartiality to express a firm point of view or an intention to vote one way or the other 
when the application is considered by the Development Control Committee. 
 
Lobbying can be perceived to affect the impartiality and integrity of a councillor. In order to 
avoid that perception, members are advised to: 
 

 Avoid meeting an applicant,  potential applicant, or objector alone; 
 Listen to any representations made but not make it known in advance of the 

Development Control Committee meeting whether they support or oppose a proposal; 
 Restrict any response they do give to procedural advice; 
 Direct lobbyists or objectors, including written representations, to planning officers who 

can include reference to their opinions in the report; 
 Not pressurise officers into making a particular recommendation in the report; 
 Notify the Chief Planning Officer of the existence of any lobbying interests; 
 Notify the Chief Planning Officer of any interest they have in the application. 

 
Members of the Development Control Committee should not actively campaign either for 
or against planning applications. 
 
Members should feel free to ask questions of officers in order to clarify their understanding 
of the proposals. 
 
A member who feels they have been exposed to undue or excessive lobbying or 
approaches (including inappropriate offers of gifts or hospitality) should tell the Monitoring 
Officer who can advise the relevant officer to take the matter up with the person 
concerned. 
 
A Development Control Committee member who does not represent the ward affected will 
find it easier to take an impartial stance on an application. A member who represents the 
ward concerned, possibly one who has also been campaigning for or against the proposal 

15



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

will find it difficult to argue, when the decision is taken at the Committee, that they have 
weighed up the arguments for the first time at the meeting. They should therefore declare 
a prejudicial interest and not take part in the vote. 
 
The responsibility for striking the right balance in this process lies with the individual 
member. 
 
4.2 Discussions with potential applicants. 
 
Potential applicants are encouraged to hold pre-application meetings with officers, but in 
order to avoid the perception that these are, or have become, a part of the lobbying 
process, these meetings: 
 

 Should be at officer level; 
 Will be at a forum prescribed for the purpose if they involve members; 
 Where potentially contentious, will be attended by two officers including the Chief 

Planning Officer or his representative. 
 
A note of the discussion will be taken and be kept on file and made available for inspection 
at the appropriate time 
 
It will be made clear that the discussions will not bind the Council and that any views 
expressed are personal and provisional based on the Unitary Development Plan. 
 
It will be made clear that at such meetings all the relevant information may not be at hand 
and formal consultations with interested parties will also be taking place. 
 
It will be made clear whether or not members or officers will consider the application. 
 
Members of the Development Control Committee should generally avoid meetings with 
applicants or potential applicants, and should seek officer advice before making any 
commitment to do so. 
 
4.3 Member Site visits 
 
Site visits can be useful to identify features of a proposal that may be difficult to identify 
from the plans and supporting material; where there are features of the proposal which are 
difficult to convey in a written report, or the proposal is particularly contentious.  However, 
site visits may delay an application, and therefore will only be authorised where the 
expected benefit of so doing is substantial and/or where there are significant and complex 
policy implications. 
 
The approach taken by Harrow Council is for site visits comprising an organised inspection 
by the committee members with officer assistance.  Informal visits to view the site from the 
public domain can often be helpful to familiarise members with the issues to be 
considered, but members should avoid making contact with applicants, property owners or 
objectors in such circumstances. 
 
Site visits by members alone at the request of applicants or objectors should not be 
undertaken and may lead to accusations of impartiality and maladministration. 
 

16



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

A revised Procedure Note for Member Site Visits was agreed by Development Control 
Committee on 11 December 2002 and is attached as Annex 1. 
 
5. Committee Meetings 
 
5.1 Officer reports to Committee 
 
To ensure that the Council is not accused of inadequate consideration of the issues, or 
inconsistent decision-making or non-existent reasoning behind a recommendation, the 
following rules will be followed in the preparation of reports for committee: 
 

 Reports must be accurate and cover, amongst other things, the objections, the views of 
those consulted, and the officer response to consultations; 

 Relevant information should include an outline of the relevant development plan 
policies; site description, proposal description, relevant planning history, applicant’s 
statement (if any) and an appraisal of all relevant considerations; 

 Reports must have a written recommendation; 
 Information received after the report was finalised will be reported on the printed 

addendum circulated at the Committee meeting; 
 Oral reporting (except where an update is required) should be avoided and carefully 

minuted where it is necessary; 
 Reports must contain technical appraisals, including references to specific clauses of 

the UDP, which clearly justify a recommendation; 
 If the report recommendation is contrary to the Development Plan, the material 

considerations that justify the departure must be clearly stated. 
 
5.2 Public representations at Committee 
 
Development Control Committee is held in public and the Council has a procedure for 
representations by applicants and objectors.  The procedure applies only to applications 
for planning permission and consultations received from adjoining Councils that are to be 
determined by the Committee where the application is recommended for approval or 
‘grant’.  It does not apply to applications which are recommended for refusal or those to be 
determined by the Chief Planning Officer under his delegated powers. The case officer 
dealing with the application will be able to say how the application is being determined and 
by whom, although in some instances this can change, where, for example, the nominated 
party member requests an application to be considered by the Committee.  
 
The procedures to be applied are as follows: 
 

 No later than 5.00pm on the day before the meeting, objectors should give the 
Committee Administrator (Tel: 020 8424 1269) notice of their wish to speak.  

 
The following criteria will be applied: 

 only one objector on each relevant planning application may normally address the 
Committee, but in exceptional circumstances two objectors may be allowed to speak; 

 a group of objectors will be asked to nominate a spokesperson; 
 the applicant or their agent may only make representations if an objector has 

addressed the committee (if there is none, the applicant or agent will not be permitted 
to speak); 

17



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

 any person making representations may speak for a maximum of three minutes.  On 
major or significant applications five minutes may be allowed, but this will be at the 
discretion of the committee; 

 there will be no further verbal exchanges after the representation though members of 
the Committee may ask factual questions if clarification is needed. 

 
Where the officer is recommending refusal of an application and the Committee is minded 
to disagree with that recommendation, the application will be deferred to the next meeting 
in order to allow renotification of consultees to advise them of the opportunity to make 
representations as outlined in this procedure.  
 
The Committee Administrator will know whether objectors or applicants have asked to 
speak on an application, though the only sure way of knowing whether representations 
from objectors or applicants will be heard is to attend the meeting. 
 
Copies of the agenda and reports for Development Control Committee meetings are 
available for inspection five clear working days before the meeting. These can be viewed 
in the Environmental Information Centre, the library next to the Civic Centre and on the 
Internet at www.harrow.gov.uk. 
 
There is also a deputations procedure which applies to all other business discussed at 
Development Control Committee. 
 
6. Making the decision 
 
6.1 Making up your mind about planning applications 
 
When members make their decisions at Development Control Committee they must be 
able to demonstrate that all the relevant facts and arguments have been taken into 
account. Members must not declare the way they intend to vote or express any opinion on 
the merits of the application before their attendance, and formal consideration, at the 
Development Control Committee.  
 
Members should avoid giving a final view on an application before the Development 
Control meeting, as  this may lead to the perception that the member has fettered their 
discretion.  This places the Council at risk from a judicial review of the decision.  
 
Even if a member has no personal or prejudicial interest in the matter, if they take a view 
on it prior to the Development Control Committee they should not attend the committee or 
participate in the decision.  
 
A member with no personal or prejudicial interest may: 
 

 Listen to and receive viewpoints from residents and other interested parties; 
 Make comments to residents, interested parties, other members or appropriate officers 

provided they do not  prejudice the issue and the member makes clear they are 
keeping an open mind; 

 Seek information through the appropriate channels.  
 
The overriding duty of members is to the whole community not just to the people in their 
ward, and, taking account of the need to make decisions impartially, members should not 
favour, or appear to favour, any person, company, group or locality. 

18



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

 
6.2 Development proposals submitted by Councillors or Officers of the Council 
 
Serving councillors who act as agents for members of the public or developers pursuing 
planning matters within the Council must play no part in the decision making process for 
those proposals.   
 
Similarly, Councillors submitting their own proposals to the Council should play no part in 
its processing, though they may explain and justify their proposal to an officer in advance 
of the Development Control Committee meeting in the same way as any other applicant. 
 
Such applications will be reported to Development Control Committee for decision, not 
determined by Officers. 
 
Two particular sets of circumstances that have caused problems for members in the past 
are planning applications which involve the land of another member of that councillor’s 
party. It is suggested that: 
 
i)  where a planning application includes land owned by a member of the Council in a 
member’s political party, they clearly have a personal interest in the matter. They should 
also consider themselves to have a prejudicial interest and not participate in the discussion 
of the application. This is clearly the safest option for members and ensures there can be 
no breach of the Code of Conduct; 
 
ii) If an application is made in respect of land adjacent to or nearby land owned by 
another councillor within a member’s political party, , they may be able to argue that they 
do not have either a personal or a prejudicial interest if they have no knowledge of the 
scheme, or the impact on the councillor other than that reported by officers, and they make 
no attempt to discuss the issue with anyone prior to the decision at Committee. 
 
6.3 The party whip and discussions at group meetings 
 
A decision on a Committee planning application will take place at the meeting of the 
Development Control Committee when all available information is to hand. This does not 
prevent members of the same party discussing proposed planning applications with each 
other, but a political group meeting prior to the Committee cannot be used to decide how 
representatives on the Development Control Committee should vote.  The use of the party 
whip to try to influence the outcome of a planning application may amount to 
maladministration. 
 
6.4 Planning Applications by the Council in respect of Council land 
The Council itself requires planning permission to carry out or authorise development on 
land it owns.  These applications will be treated in the same way as those from private 
applicants. 
 
On 15 January 2003 the Development Control Committee agreed that applications for 
minor development of up to 100m² of floorspace on land owned, or where the Council 
holds an interest, may be determined under the delegated powers of the Chief Planning 
Officer.  This delegation is subject to the proviso that the proposals, in the opinion of the 
Chief Planning Officer, do not conflict with agreed policies, standards and guidance. 
 
 

19



London Borough of Harrow    April 2003 
Protocol – Planning applications and lobbying 

 

6.5 Reserve members 
 
Where a reserve member attends a Development Control Meeting, that reserve must 
determine applications on their merits and cannot be mandated by the absent member. 
 
6.6 Decisions contrary to Officer Recommendations 
 
From time to time, Councillors may disagree with the advice of the Chief Planning Officer. 
In such cases it will be the Members’ responsibility to clearly set out the reasons for refusal 
where the Officer recommendation is for grant.  The planning reasons for rejecting the 
officer’s advice will be clearly stated, whatever the recommendation, recorded in the 
minutes of the meeting and a copy placed on the application file.   
 
The officer must be given the opportunity to explain any implications of the contrary 
decision.  
 
Where an appeal arises against such a decision officers will support the Development 
Control Committee in preparing evidence for the appeal.   
 
Where conditions included in an officer report are amended by the Committee, an officer 
should be asked to draft the new conditions and these will be approved by the Chair and 
nominated members via the non-Executive Action procedure. The date of the decision in 
these circumstances will be the date the non-Executive Action is signed by the last 
signatory.   
 
7. Complaints 
 
Any issues or concerns arising from this Protocol can be raised with the Monitoring Officer, 
the Chair of Development Control Committee or the Chair of the Council’s Standards 
Committee.  
 
The Urban Living Directorate also has a formal complaints system in operation which can 
be used if necessary. 
 

20



November 2007 

Increasing complexity in planning applications and policy makes early involvement of councillors critical, 
especially in strategic planning applications. The benefit to applicants, boroughs and communities is greater 
certainty and clarity in decision making. This guidance is aimed primarily at borough heads of planning, 
solicitors and relevant councillors and is designed to help boroughs increase the role of councillors prior to 
formal decision making. 

Government Office for London, London Councils and London First, supported by the Association of London 
Borough Planning Officers (ALBPO) and sponsored by Argent, British Land and London Communications 
Agency, commissioned Arup to undertake research into current borough practice with respect to involving 
councillors in strategic applications, and councillor training. Twenty four boroughs were interviewed. There 
is a wide variety of practice of how councillors engage with applicants. The research report is downloadable 
from our websites, addresses for which are shown below. This guidance note, drawn from the research, 
confirms that it is appropriate and important for councillors to meet applicants in the application process, 
and when handled correctly this does not disqualify councillors from voting. 

This guide combines those practices in London considered to be working well. Ideas are presented for each 
stage of the application and determination process. We do not seek uniformity of procedures across London.

The guidance deals specifically with the involvement of councillors and does not examine procedures for 
involving members of the public. This will be covered in borough statements of community involvement 
(SCI). To ensure transparency in the overall process we recommend that borough SCIs detail how the public 
will be involved in new processes adopted from this guidance. 

The guidance is not exhaustive but highlights key areas where councillors’ involvement in the planning 
process can be maximised. We recommend this guide as a ‘menu’ of good practice. Boroughs may like to 
choose options that best fit their individual circumstances. We strongly recommend that all boroughs should 
have procedures in place which ensure that councillors are well trained and are made aware of strategic 
schemes before they take their decision at committee.

We also recommend that two other elements should be in place. Every borough should already have a 
specific protocol or code of conduct for councillors involved in planning, and this should be regularly reviewed. 
There should also be a regular training programme for councillors, especially those with planning roles.

We hope this guide will help to improve the quality of decisions in London.

Involving councillors early and throughout the application and determination 
process leads to better development and better planning decisions.

Councillors should meet with the applicants of strategic schemes during the 
pre application and determination periods.

 Summary 

 Training for all councillors will result in better development, better  

 decisions and better meetings. 

 Training should be provided for new councillors as well as refresher  

 courses for experienced councillors. 

 A clear process should be established for keeping councillors well  

 informed of emerging strategic proposals. 

 Councillors can meet applicants to establish the facts of a scheme. This  

 will not disqualify them from voting, providing they do not express a  

 view on the scheme’s merits. 

 After submission, councillors and applicants should build on contact  

 established in the pre application phase. 

 Councillors can be briefed on an application by the applicant during the  

 determination period. 

 Site visits by councillors determining major schemes are an essential part  

 of the determination process. 

 Councillors should be familiar with a scheme prior to committee and  

 have met with applicants. 

 Applicants should be able to present to committee and address issues  

 raised by objectors. 

 Connecting Councillors with  
 Strategic Planning Applications: 

 A Good Practice Guide for London 

 Michael Snyder  

 London Councils 

 www.londoncouncils.gov.uk 

 Liz Meek  

 Government Office for London 

 www.gol.gov.uk 

 Baroness Jo Valentine  

 London First 

 www.londonfirst.co.uk  The study was sponsored by:  Supported by: 

21



 Connecting Councillors with Strategic Planning Applications: 

Councillor Training Pre Application Involvement Post Submission Involvement
Involvement at Committee  
and Decision Making

Essential training

 Training for all councillors will result in better  

 development, better decisions and better meetings. 

 Training should be provided for new councillors as  

 well as refresher courses for experienced councillors. 

Essential training should be provided on borough 
procedure, councillor code of conduct/borough protocol 
and planning policy. This should be provided to new 
councillors and to refresh the knowledge of existing 
councillors.

Councillors should be specifically trained in how to 
engage with applicants to ensure they get the most 
from the process without prejudicing themselves, e.g. 
asking factual questions. Most importantly, committee 
members should not debate the merits of a scheme with 
applicants.

The pace of change in the planning system is expanding 
the range of subjects with which all councillors, 
whether on cabinet, the planning committee or as ward 
councillors, need to be familiar and up-to-date. 

A commitment to councillor training in the following key 
areas is considered best practice:

scrutiny;

policy; 

tariffs) and planning conditions;

Training providers 

Whilst training can be provided successfully in-house, 
in association with the borough solicitor, there may be 
benefit in using external training providers or working 
with other borough colleagues. 

The Planning Advisory Service (www.pas.gov.uk) is a 
portal to external training.

Contact between councillors and officers

 A clear process should be established for keeping councillors  

 well informed of emerging strategic proposals. 

vice-chair of the planning committee, to keep them up to date with 
emerging developments.  These may involve the leader, the cabinet 
member for planning and the chief executive on major initiatives.

of the scheme.

facts of significant emerging development. 

Contact between councillors and applicants

 Councillors can meet applicants to establish the facts of a  

 scheme. This will not disqualify them from voting, providing  

 they do not express a view on the scheme’s merits. 

Contact between councillors and applicants should be encouraged in the 
pre application phase and should be supported by a clear code of councillor 
conduct.

More formal contact between applicants and councillors can usually be 
arranged by officers. A selection of best practice is highlighted below. 
Officers should highlight issues, discussion should focus on facts, and 

of a scheme. In all cases, the borough protocol should clearly indicate how 
members of the public will be involved in the overall process.

Ward councillor briefing: run by officers, attended by applicants.  The 
facts of a scheme are discussed. Councillors respond only to the facts 
of the scheme which are communicated to applicants by officers. 

 for strategic schemes, chaired by the head of 
planning or planning committee chair and attended by a selection of 
councillors, including ward councillors and representatives of different 
parties.  Applicants make a presentation and ward councillors, but not 
planning committee members, ask questions of the applicant. 

Planning committee member briefing: all planning committee 
members are invited to a site visit at which applicants make a 
presentation.  The briefing continues at a meeting where the 
applicant presents the scheme.  Officers summarise policy issues, 
third party views and other issues for consideration.  

Senior member briefing: senior councillors (executive members, 
cabinet and lead members), but not planning committee members, 
meet applicants and external groups.  Subsequently they brief 
colleagues on the facts of the case – no value judgements are made.  
On strategic schemes this may involve the full council. 

Presentations by applicants

 After submission, councillors and applicants should build on  

 contact established in the pre application phase. 

 Councillors can be briefed on an application by the applicant  

 during the determination period. 

Information-sharing meetings, attended by councillors and officers 
where the applicant presents and answers factual questions, are 

given to the borough protocol. Formal minutes should be prepared 
and reproduced in the officer’s report.

Planning panel

Formal meeting held between councillors (possibly a sub-group of 
the planning committee), officers, applicants and third parties.  The 
meeting can take place at or near the proposed development site.  
Third parties may ask questions, preferably tabled in advance.  

Planning forum

For strategic cases, a forum is convened and chaired by the head of 
planning, shortly after the application has been submitted.  The full 
planning committee is invited with local ward councillors and third 
parties.  Questions are taken by the applicant from all participants.   

Site visits

 Site visits by councillors determining strategic schemes are  

 an essential part of the determination process. 

Councillors must be familiar with the site before decision making. 
Site visits by councillors are best practice and are essential in 
the understanding and consideration of strategic applications. 
They should take place prior to the committee meeting so that 
councillors are familiar with context and characteristics. 

and respond to questions; 

observers to avoid a debate on the proposal’s merits;

understanding of the site and the proposal prior to the 
committee meeting.

The committee process

 Councillors should be familiar with a scheme prior to  

 committee and have met with applicants. 

 Applicants should be able to present to committee and  

 address issues raised by objectors. 

Prior to committee 

Councillors should receive essential planning training before 
they determine applications. 

Councillors should be aware of the scheme and should have had 
the opportunity to raise issues at an early stage whether pre 
application, post submission, or both. 

Councillors should be familiar with the site and have undertaken 
a site visit. 

Pre-committee meetings between officers and the chair (and 
other senior members) enable strategic applications to be 
highlighted and procedural committee issues agreed.  

The protocol should include a proper opportunity for applicants 
to consider and respond to objections. 

Given the time constraints of committee meetings, the most 
complex schemes may merit a special meeting, or a series of 
meetings, to enable the issues to be discussed in appropriate 
detail. One of the meetings may be held at the proposed site. 

At committee

Clear protocols concerning proceedings at planning committee 
are essential.  

visit once the application gets to committee and should 
not request a deferral if they have not attended a pre-
committee meeting or an organised site visit. 

debate to be able to vote.

members of the public.

guidance on what constitutes a conflict of interest. To 
determine validity in advance of the committee meeting, 
declarations of interest should be raised formally with the 
borough solicitor or the chief planning officer.

 A Good Practice Guide for London 

22



 

 
Meeting: Standards Committee  
Date: 
 

Thursday 5 June 2008 

Subject: 
 

Establishment of Panel 

Key Decision: (Executive-
side only) 

No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Hugh Peart, Director of Legal & Governance Services 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Leader, Councillor David Ashton 

Exempt: 
 

No  
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 -Terms of Reference Member Development Panel 
Appendix 2 – Proposed Membership of Member Development 
Panel  

 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. Council at its meeting on 8 May 2008 re-established the Standards Committee.  

Section 113(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 inserted into the Local 
Government Act 2000 (Section 54A) allows the provision to appoint sub-committees 
from time to time  and this Committee has appointed previously a Member 
Development Panel, the Terms of Reference for which are attached at Appendix 1. 

 
3. The proposed Councillor membership of the Panel and the nominee proposed as 

Chairman is set out at Appendix 2. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
Members are asked to: 
 
(1) Establish a Member Development Panel and to appoint Members for the Municipal 

Year 2008/09. 
 
(2)    Note the Terms of Reference of the Panel; 
 
(3) Confirm the councillor membership of the Panel and nomination for Chairman of the 

Member Development Panel; 
 
 
SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Contact:  Pauline Ferris, Senior Professional Democratic Services, 

      Telephone:  020 8424 1269 
      Email: pauline.ferris@harrow.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers: None 
 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 23 to 26

23



 

 
 
 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PANEL  
 
 
The Member Development Panel will have the following powers and duties: 
 

(a) to have oversight of the annual programme of member development; 
 

(b) to prepare and assist in the delivery of the induction of new Councillors following the Borough 
elections or any by-election; 

 
(c) to have oversight of the resources allocated for member development and make recommendations 

to Council for the appropriate resources for the member development function; 
 

(d) to liaise with external agencies providing development opportunities for members and procure their 
services as appropriate.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 

 
 

 
APPENDIX 2 

 
 
 
 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PANEL  (4) 
(Non-Proportional) 
 
 
 Conservative  

 
(2) 

Labour  
 
(2) 

 

 
I. 
Members 

 
Jean Lammiman (CH) 
Paul Osborn 
 
 

 
B E Gate  
Phillip O’Dell 
 

 

II. 
Reserve 
Members 

1. Mrs Myra Michael 
2. Mrs Vina Mithani 
 

1. Keeki Thammaiah 
2. David Perry 
 

 
 

 
 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



NOTICE APPENDIX A 
  

Complaints about Members 
 
The procedure on how you can make a complaint against a Member of the 
council has now changed and you can now complain directly to the Standards 
Committee of the Council.  Previously the Standards Board for England dealt 
with all complaints. 
 
All Members have to comply with the Code of Conduct.  The Code sets out rules 
about how they should behave and also requires them to disclose any personal 
interests they have.  The Code is contained in Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution 
and is available on the website. 
 
Anyone can make a complaint about a breach of the Code of Conduct. This 
complaint must be in writing.    

If you want to make a complaint about a Member, please read the guidance 
below before you fill out the complaint form.  

Guidance (web link) 

Complaint form (web link) 

If your complaint is not about a Member, then please use the Council's Corporate 
Complaints Procedure.  

Contact us 

If you have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us via email 
standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk 

Telephone: 020 8420 9414 

Fax: 020 8424 1557 

Or alternatively you may contact us by post: 
 
Monitoring Officer 
Harrow Council 
P O Box 2 
Civic Centre 
Station Road 
Harrow 
HA1  2UH 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 27 to 52

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

Appendix B 

_________________________________________ 
 
 
Guidance- How to make a complaint? 
  
This leaflet tells you how to make a complaint if you are unhappy about the way 
that a Member of this Council has behaved. It also explains: 
 
 

 How to make a complaint 
 

 Who you can complain about 
 

 What you can complain about 
 

 What will happen to your complaint 
 
 
If you have any questions or difficulties or are in need of any support in reading 
or understanding this leaflet, for example- if English is not your first language or 
you have a disability, please contact us on 020 8420 9414. 
 
Alternatively, you can e-mail queries to 
standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



 2

 
  HOW TO MAKE A COMPLAINT? 
 

• You need to send your complaint in writing by completing a 
complaints form and sending it to the address at the end of this 
leaflet. 

 
• This leaflet helps you make sure you are sending us all the 

information we need. You can either use the form or write a 
letter that covers all the points in the form. Please send any 
documents that support your complaint with your form or letter. 

 
• If you cannot write your complaint in English, we can arrange to 

have it translated for you. 
 

• If you have any questions or difficulties about the form, please 
contact the Monitoring Officer by e-mail at 
standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk 

 
 
 SECTION 1 - YOUR CONTACT DETAILS 
 

• Please provide your full name, address, contact telephone 
number and e-mail.  Please also specify which complainant type 
best describes you e.g. an Officer of the Council, Member of the 
public etc.  

 
• An officer from the Council may need to contact you personally 

to go through the details of your complaint. 
 
 
 SECTION 2 - WHO YOU CAN COMPLAIN ABOUT? 

 
• You can complain about Councillors or Co-opted Members 

(together referred to as Members) of this Council.  
 
• Please note, that the Standards Committee can only consider 

complaints about individual Members. It cannot consider 
complaints about the Council as a whole or about any people 
employed by it. A complaint about a service is dealt with under 
the Council’s corporate complaints procedure. 

 
• When the Monitoring Officer receives a complaint he will 

determine whether the complaint should be directed to the 
Standards Sub-Committee for the initial assessment or whether 
another course of action is appropriate.  

30



 3

 
 
SECTION 3 - WHAT YOU CAN COMPLAIN ABOUT? 

 
You can complain about a Member breaching any part of the Council’s 
Code of Conduct for Councillors. A copy of the Code can be found in 
Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution which is available on the Council’s 
website.  
 
A complaint can be made if you believe a Member has breached any 
part of the Code that includes: 

 
 Failing to treat others with respect 
 Unlawfully discriminating against someone  
 Bullying any person  
 Intimidating or attempting to intimidate any person who is or 

likely to be a complainant or witness in relation to the 
investigation or proceedings  

 Doing anything which compromises or which is likely to 
compromise the impartiality of those who work for the authority  

 Revealing information that was given to them in confidence, or 
preventing someone getting information to which they are 
entitled by law  

 Damaging the reputation of their office or authority, where the 
conduct is linked to their public role and not in their private 
capacity  

 Using their position improperly, to their own or someone else's 
advantage or disadvantage  

 Misusing the authority's resources  
 Allowing the authority's resources to be misused for the 

activities of a registered political party  
 Failing to register financial or other interests  
 Failing to reveal a personal interest at a meeting  
 Taking part in the discussion or making a decision where they 

have an interest that is so significant that it is likely to affect their 
judgement (known as a 'prejudicial interest')  

 Improperly influencing a decision regarding a matter that they 
have a prejudicial interest in  

 Failing to register any gifts or hospitality worth £25 or more 
(including its source), that they have received in their role as a 
Member  

 
If none of the above applies to your complaint if it is not something that 
the Standards Committee can deal with.   

 
 

31



 4

WHAT WE CANNOT INVESTIGATE 
 

The local Standards Committee cannot investigate the following: 
 

 Complaints where a Member is not named 
 Complaints that are not in writing 
 Incidents or actions that are not covered by the Code of 

Conduct 
 Incidents that are about a fault in the way that the Council has 

or has not done something.   Such a complaint may be a matter 
for the Local Government Ombudsman 

 Complaints about people employed by Council 
 Incidents that happened before a Member was elected 
 Incidents that happened before the Council adopted its local 

Code of Conduct or before 5 May 2002, whichever is the earlier 
 Complaints about the way in which the Council conducts and 

records its meetings 
 
   EVIDENCE 
 

If you believe a Member has breached the Code of Conduct for 
Councillors as described above, any evidence that you consider is 
relevant to your complaint should be attached.  For example, details of 
any witnesses or details of any dates/times of any incidents etc. You 
can send accompanying documents if you wish.  

 
SECTION 4 - CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION  
 
Before you send us your complaint, you should be aware that we are 
unlikely to be able to keep your identity confidential from the person 
about whom you are complaining or any persons that are involved in 
the process of dealing with complaints, or third parties such as the 
Standards Board for England who are responsible for monitoring the 
Standards Committee functions.  
 
In the interests of fairness and natural justice, Members who are 
complained about have a right to know who has made the complaint 
and be provided with a summary of the complaint.   For this reason, we 
are unlikely to withhold your identity or the details of the complaint 
unless there are good reasons to do so. For example, where the 
disclosure of personal details may result in the evidence being 
compromised or destroyed, or if there is a real possibility of intimidation 
of the complainant or witnesses by the subject Member. 
 
If you believe your details should be withheld please specify the 
reasons for this on the complaint form. 

32



 5

 
Requests for confidentiality or requests for suppression of complaint 
details will not automatically be granted. The assessment of your 
request will be undertaken by the Standards Committee who will carry 
out the initial assessment of your complaint.  We will then contact you 
again with the decision. If your request is not granted, we will allow you 
the option of withdrawing your complaint. 
 
It is important that you understand that in certain exceptional 
circumstances where the matter complained of is very serious we can 
proceed with an investigation or other action and in the process 
disclose your name even if you have asked us not to. The following 
considerations will be taken into account when determining whether to 
proceed or not: 
 

• Where the public interest in taking some action on the complaint 
outweighs the complainants wish to withhold information or 
request to withdraw the complaint 

 
• The complaint is such that the action can be taken on it  
      without the complainants participation 

 
• There is an identifiable underlying reason for the request to 

withdraw the complaint, for example, the information suggests 
that the complainant may be pressured by the subject Member 
or associates of theirs, to withdraw the complaint. 

 
If you are concerned about details of your complaint being given to the 
Member subject to your complaint you can e-mail the Monitoring 
Officer at standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk  

  

 5. WHAT HAPPENS TO YOUR COMPLAINT? 

 Initial Assessment 
 

When we receive your complaint, we will write to you to let you know 
that we have received it.  Within 20 working days of receipt the 
Standards Sub-Committee will make an initial assessment and decide 
what course of action to take in respect of the complaint.  The Sub-
Committee may: 
 

(a) decide that no action should be taken in respect of the 
allegation; 

33



 6

(b) refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer to undertake 
mediation, training or an alternative measure to address the 
issues that have arisen; 

(c) refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer for investigation 
(d) in certain circumstances, refer the allegation to the 

Standards Board for England. 
  Review  
 

If the Standards Sub-Committee decides that your complaint should 
not be referred for investigation, we will write to you explaining the 
reasons why. If you are unhappy with the outcome you may seek a 
review of this decision by making a further request in writing with 
reasons, within 30 working days after the initial assessment decision 
is received.  The review will be determined by a Sub-Committee 
comprising separate members to those, which undertook the initial 
assessment and will make a decision in relation to that review within 
three months.  
 
If following the review the decision not to investigate is upheld you we 
will write to you with the decision. There is no further right of appeal.  
 

  Investigation/ Determination Hearing 
 

If your complaint is referred to the Monitoring Officer for investigation, 
we will write to you and inform you of the timescales for completing the 
investigation, and details of any hearings (if appropriate). You will also 
have an opportunity to provide the investigator with any further 
information or documents that you consider relevant. We will of course 
write to you to tell you the outcome of the hearing. 

 
Remember, a summary of the complaint and your details will be 
shared with the subject Member and all parties involved in the 
case. See section 4 above for more details. 

       
 

6. AT THE END OF AN INVESTIGATION 
 

Following a hearing, a Standards Committee will make one of the 
following findings about the Member subject to the complaint: 
 

 The Member had not failed to comply with the Code of Conduct 
 The Member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct but 

that no action needs to be taken. 
 The Member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and 

that a sanction should be imposed. 
 

34



 7

If the Member is no longer a Member of the Council the Standards 
Committee can only censure that person. Otherwise, it can impose any 
one of, or any combination of the following sanctions: 
 

 Censure the Member 
 Restriction for up to a maximum of 6 months of that Member’s 

access to the premises and/or resources of the authority.  
Provided that any such restrictions are reasonable and 
proportionate to the nature of the breach, and do not unduly 
restrict the Members ability to perform their functions as a 
Member 

 Partial suspension of that Member for up to a maximum of 6 
months 

 Suspension of that Member for up to a maximum of 6 months 
 A requirement that the Member submit a written apology in a 

form specified by the Standards Committee 
 A requirement that the Member undertakes such training as 

specified by the Standards Committee 
 A requirement that the Member participate in such conciliation 

as specified by the Standards Committee 
 Partial suspension of the Member for up to a maximum of 6 

months or until such time as the Member submits a written 
apology in a form specified by the Standards Committee 

 Partial suspension of the Member for up to a maximum of 6 
months or until such time as the Member undertakes any 
training or participated in such conciliation specified by the 
Standards Committee 

 Suspension of the Member for up to a maximum of 6 months or 
until such time as the Member submits a written apology in a 
form specified by the Standards Committee 

 Suspension of the Member for up to a maximum of 6 months or 
until such time as that Member undertakes such training or has 
participated in such conciliation as the Standards Committee 
specifies. 

 
Any sanction imposed shall commence immediately following its 
imposition.  Alternatively, the Standards Committee can decide that 
any sanction will start on any specified date up to 6 months after 
the imposition of that sanction. 

 
POINTS TO REMEMBER: 
 

 We can only consider complaints that are about individual Members 
of this Council 

 We can only investigate matters where you believe a Member has 
breached the Code of Conduct for Members 

35



 8

 Your complaint must be in writing and cover all the points set out in 
the complaints form 

 Your details and details of the complaint are unlikely to remain 
confidential as we need to share it with all parties involved in the 
process including the subject Member 

 Do send us as much information as you can in order for us to 
decide whether or not the matter should be investigated 

 
We hope that the information in this leaflet has answered your questions 
about making a complaint. 
 
If you have any more questions, you can contact:  
 

  The Monitoring Officer  
  Harrow Council 
  P O Box 2 
                 Civic Centre 
  Station Road 
  Harrow 
  HA1 2UH 
   
 
 E-mail: standards.monitoringofficer@harrow .gov.uk 
 

36



____________________________________________________________ 
Standards Committee Complaints Form                                      
 

1 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE COMPLAINT FORM  
  
If you are in need of any support in completing this form, if for example English is not 
your first language, or you have a disability that prevents you making your complaint in 
writing - please contact us on 020 8420 9414. 
You can also e-mail us on standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk 
 

a. Complaints can only be accepted in writing 
b. An officer from the Council may contact you personally to go through the details 

of your complaint. 
c. The Council is unlikely to be able to keep your identity or the information you 

have provided confidential. If you have serious concerns about disclosure of 
your name and a summary of your complaint, please complete Section 4 on 
confidential information. 

d. Please read the leaflet How to make a complaint prior to completing this form. 
 
Section 1: Your contact details 
 
Title:  
  
First Name:  
  
Last Name:  
  
House Number/Name:  
  
Road/Street:  
  
Town/City:  
  
Postcode:  
  
Telephone/Mobile:  
  
E-mail address:  
 
Please tick the box which complainant type best describes you: 

 Member of Public 
 Elected/ Co-opted Member of the Authority 
 Independent Member of the Standards Committee 
 Member of Parliament 
 Local Authority Monitoring Officer 
 Other Local Authority Officer/Employee 
 Other (Please specify)   

37



 
Standards Committee Complaints Form                             2 
       

 
Section 2: Your complaint 
 
Who are you complaining about? 
 
Please give the name of the Councillor/s, or co-opted Member/s of this Authority that 
you consider has breached the Code of Conduct. 
 
 

Title First Name Last Name 
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
 
Section 3: What are you complaining about? 
 
Please explain what the Member has done that you believe breaches the Code of 
Conduct.    Please provide us with as much information as possible to help us decide 
whether your complaint should be investigated.  Include the date and specific details 
of the alleged misconduct, and any information that supports the allegation. 
 
If you are complaining about more than one member you should clearly explain what 
each individual member has done that you believe has breached the Code of 
Conduct.  
 
We can only investigate complaints that a member has breached the Code of Conduct 
(please see leaflet How to make a Complaint).  
Continue on a separate sheet if there is not enough space on this form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



 
Standards Committee Complaints Form                             3 
       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Evidence (if this applies) 
 
Please attach to this form, copies of any correspondence, documents, names 
and details of witnesses, and any other evidence that you feel is relevant to your 
complaint.   Please avoid sending us large amounts of background information 
that only relate indirectly to your complaint. 
 
Please briefly list the documents you will be enclosing:  
 
 Date Document 
1.   
2.   
3.   
4.   
5.   
6.   

 
 
Section 4: Confidential information (this part only applies if you are 
asking for your identity to be kept confidential) 
 
In the interests of fairness and natural justice, Members who are complained about 
have a right to know who has made the complaint and be provided with a summary of 
the complaint.   For this reason, we are unlikely to withhold your identity or the details 
of the complaint unless there are good reasons to do so.  

39



 
Standards Committee Complaints Form                             4 
       

 
Requests for confidentiality or requests for suppression of complaint details will not 
automatically be granted. The assessment of your request will be undertaken by the 
Standards Committee who will carry out the initial assessment of your complaint.  We 
will then contact you again with the decision. If your request is not granted, we will 
allow you the option of withdrawing your complaint. 
It is important that you understand that in certain exceptional circumstances where the 
matter complained of is very serious we can proceed with an investigation or other 
action and in the process disclose your name even if you have asked us not to.  
 
Please provide details of why you believe we should withhold your name/details 
of your complaint: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed…………………………………..  Dated…………………………………… 
 
 
 
Please send this form together with any attachments to: 
  
 

The Monitoring Officer 
 Harrow Council 

P O Box 2 
Civic Centre 
Station Road 
Harrow 
HA1  2UH 
 
Or by e-mail to standards.monitoringofficer@harrow.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 

40



 
Standards Committee Complaints Form                             5 
       

 
EQUALITIES MONITORING INFORMATION 

 
 
Completion of this section is optional.  However the Harrow Council is committed to 
equality of opportunity. To help us monitor the service, please complete this section.  All 
information will be treated in the strictest confidence and will only be used for 
monitoring and to identify service improvements.   
 
 
What is your ethnic group? Please tick the appropriate box 
 
Asian or Asian British 
 

Black or Black British 

 Bangladeshi  African 
 Indian  Caribbean 
 Pakistani   
 Asian Other (pleas indicate) 

 
 Black Other (please indicate) 

Chinese or Other Ethnic Group 
 

Mixed 

 Chinese  White & Black African 
   White and Black Asian 
   White & Black Caribbean 

 Any Other Ethnic Group 
(please indicate) 

 Mixed Other (please indicate) 

White  Gender 
 

 British  Female  
 Irish  Male 
 White Other   

 
Gender  Please tick the appropriate box 
 

 Female   Male 
 
Disability  Please tick the appropriate box 
 
Do you consider yourself to have a disability?  The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 
defines a “disabled person” as a person with “A physical or mental impairment, which has a 
substantial or long term adverse effect on their ability to carry out normal day to day 
activities”. 
       Yes        No                
MONITORING INFORMATION 
If ‘Yes’ please state: 
 

       Hearing             Physical  
       Learning              Visual  

Other  
 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
 
 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
The Standards Committee will have the following powers and duties: 
 
 (a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Councillors, co-

opted members and “church” and parent governor representatives; 
 

(b) assisting Councillors, co-opted members and “church” and parent governor 
representatives to observe the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

 
 (c) advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of 

Conduct; 
 

(d) monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
 

(e) developing and recommending local protocols to the Council to supplement 
the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

 
(f) enforcing local protocols and applying sanctions in respect of breaches as 

appropriate; 
 
 (g) advising, training or arranging to train Councillors, co-opted members and 

“church” and parent governor representatives on matters relating to the 
Members’ Code of Conduct; 

 
 (h) granting dispensations to Councillors, co-opted members and “church” and 

parent governor representatives from requirements relating to interests set 
out in the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

 
 (i) dealing with any reports from a case tribunal or interim case tribunal, and 

any report from the Monitoring Officer on any matter which is referred by an 
Ethical Standards Officer to the Monitoring Officer; 

 
(j) to keep under review and amend, as appropriate, the Protocol on 

Councillor/Officer Relations; 
  

(k) to keep under review the Officer Code of Conduct and, after consultation 
with unions representing staff, make recommendations to Council for 
amendment or addition;  

 
(l) to receive reports and keep a general overview of probity matters arising 

from ombudsman investigations, Monitoring Officer reports, reports of the 
Chief Financial Officer and Audit Commission; 

 
(m) to have oversight of the Council’s whistleblowing policy; 

 
(n) to agree the policy for decisions on payments to those adversely affected by 

Council maladministration (under section 92 Local Government Act 2000) 

43



  
(p) To establish sub-committees to deal with complaints that a member or 

a co-opted member has failed to comply with the Council’s Code of 
Conduct  

 
(q) To consider any application received from any officer of the Authority 

for exemption from political restriction under Sections 1 and 2 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 in respect of the post held by 
that officer and may direct the Authority that the post shall not be 
considered to be a politically restricted post and that the post be 
removed from the list maintained by the Authority under Section 2(2) 
of that Act. 

 
(r) Upon the application of any person or otherwise, consider whether a 

post should be included in the list maintained by the Authority under 
Section 2(2) of the 1989 Act, and may direct the Authority to include a 
post in that list. 

 
 

Assessment Sub-Committee 
 
The Assessment Sub-committee has the following powers and duties: 
 
(a) To receive allegations that a member or co-opted member of the 

Authority has failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Authority’s 
Code of Conduct  

 
(b) Upon receipt of each allegation, the Sub-Committee shall make an initial 

assessment of the allegation and shall then do one of the following: 
   

• refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer, for formal 
investigation 

 
• refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer with directions that 

he/she arrange training, conciliation or such appropriate 
alternative steps as permitted by Regulations; 

 
• refer the allegation to the Standards Board for England; 
 
• decide that no action should be taken in respect of the allegation; 

or 
 

• where the allegation is in respect of a person who is no longer a 
member of the Authority, but is a member of another relevant 
authority (as defined in Section 49 of the Local Government Act 
2000), refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer of that other 
relevant authority; 

 
(c) Where the Sub-Committee resolves to do any of the actions set out in 

paragraph the Sub-Committee shall state its reasons for that decision 
 

 
Review Sub-Committee 
 

The Review Sub-committee has the following powers and duties: 

44



 
(a) To review, upon the request of a person who has made an allegation that 

a member of the Authority has failed, or may have failed, to comply with 
the Authority’s Code of Conduct a decision of the Assessment Sub-
Committee that no action be taken in respect of that allegation 

 
(b) Upon receipt of such request and any accompanying report by the 

Monitoring Officer, the Sub-Committee review the decision and shall then 
do one of the following: 

   
• refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer, for formal 

investigation 
 
• refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer with directions that 

he/she arrange training, conciliation or such appropriate 
alternative steps as permitted by Regulations; 

 
• refer the allegation to the Standards Board for England; 
 
• decide that no action should be taken in respect of the allegation; 

or 
 

• where the allegation is in respect of a person who is no longer a 
member of the Authority, but is a member of another relevant 
authority (as defined in Section 49 of the Local Government Act 
2000), refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer of that other 
relevant authority; 

 
 
Hearing Sub-Committee 
 
The Hearing Sub-committee has the following powers and duties 
 

(a) To consider allegation referred to it following investigation that a 
member or co-opted member has failed to comply with the Council’s 
Code of Conduct for Councillors 

 
(b)       To determine whether 

 
• it accepts the Monitoring Officer’s findings of no failure to 

observe the Code of Conduct 
 
• the matter should be referred for consideration at a hearing 

before the Hearings Sub-Committee of the Standards 
Committee; or 

 
• that the matter should be referred to the Adjudication Panel for 

determination where it considers that the action it could take 
against the member is insufficient 

 
(c) Where the Sub-Committee resolves to do any of the actions set out in 

Paragraph (b) above, the Sub-Committee shall state its reasons for 
that decision. 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\5\5\AI00045558\AppendixC1EthicalStandardsAssessmentandReferralSub0.doc 

 
 
 
 
 Assessment and Review Sub-Committees (3) - (Pool of Members) 
 (Non-Proportional) 
 
(To be selected from the following nominees) 
 
 

 Independent 
Persons 
 

Conservative Labour 

 (1) Chair   
  

(1) (1) 

    

I.  
Members 
 
 

Rev Peter Broadbent 
Sheila Darr 
John Kirkland  
Mohammad Rizvi 
 
 

Husain Akhtar 
Mrs Kinnear 
Jean Lammiman 
Joyce Nickolay 

Phillip O’Dell  
B E Gate 

II. 
Reserve 
Members 

 
 
 

Mrs Lurline Champagnie 
Tom Weiss 
Jeremy Zeid 
Mark Versallion 
 

Mitzi Green 
Asad Omar 

 
 
Membership Rules 
 

 
(1)  The membership of The Standards Committee -  Assessment and 
Review Sub-Committees will be three persons (comprising one 
Independent Persons and one Elected Member from each of the main 
political parties, within the Standards Committee Membership); 
 
(2)  the quorum for the Sub-Committees is 3 
 
(3)  the Sub-Committees shall be chaired by the Independent Person; 

 
(4)  Members attending a Panel be required to vote on a local 
determination and not be permitted to abstain. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\5\5\AI00045558\AppendixC1EthicalStandardsAssessmentandReferralSub0.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
HEARING SUB-COMMITTEE (5) - POOL OF MEMBERS 
 (Non-Proportional) 
 
 
(To be selected from the following nominees) 
 

 Independent 
Persons 
 

Conservative Labour 

 (3) Chair +  
 2 Independent 

Members  
 from the Pool 

(1) (1) 

    

I.  
Members 
 
 

Rev Peter Broadbent 
Sheila Darr 
John Kirkland  
Mohammad Rizvi 
 
 

Husain Akhtar 
Mrs Kinnear 
Jean Lammiman 
Joyce Nickolay 

Phillip O’Dell  
B E Gate 

II. 
Reserve 
Members 

 Mrs Lurline Champagnie 
Tom Weiss 
Jeremy Zeid 
Mark Versallion 
 

Mitzi Green 
Asad Omar 

 
 

Membership Rules 
 
(1)  The membership of The Standards Committee Hearing Sub-Committee, 
to hear local determinations will be five persons (comprising three 
Independent Persons and one Elected Member from each of the main 
political parties, within the Standards Committee Membership); 
 
(2)  the quorum for the Sub-Committee hearing a local determination is 3, 
including at least two of the Independent Persons; 
 
(3)  the Sub-Committee hearing a local determination be chaired by one of 
the Independent Persons; 
 
(4)  the Independent Person to fulfil the function in (3) be appointed by the 
Standards Committee; 
 
(5)  Members attending the Sub-Committee be required to vote on a local 
determination and not be permitted to abstain. 

 
 

48



APPENDIX D 
 
 
 

 
ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
PRE-ASSESSMENT REPORTS AND ENQUIRIES 

 
The Monitoring officer, or other officer shall prepare a short summary of the 
complaint, which shall set out: 
 
 

• Whether the complaint is within jurisdiction 
 
• The paragraph of the Code of Conduct that the complaint might relate to, 

the paragraphs the complainant has identified 
 
• A summary of key aspects of the complaint if it is lengthy or complex 

 
• Any further information that the officer has obtained to assist the 

Assessment Sub-Committee with its decision to include: 
 

(a) obtaining a copy of a declaration of acceptance of office form and 
an undertaking to observe the Code 

 
(b) minutes of meetings 

 
(c) a copy of a member’s entry in the register of interests 

 
(d) information from Companies House or the Land Registry 

 
(e) other easily obtainable documents 

 
• Officers may only contact the complainant for clarification of their 

complaint if they are unable to understand the document submitted 
 
• Pre-assessment enquiries must not amount to an investigation. 
 

49



 
Assessment Sub-Committee Criteria for assessing complaints 

 
The Sub-committee may not refer a complaint for investigation if it falls into any 
of the following categories: 

• there is not enough information to satisfy the sub-committee that    
the complaint should be referred for investigation or other action 

• the complaint is about a member who is no longer a member of the 
authority but is a member of another authority (in such 
circumstances the sub-committee may with to refer the complaint to 
the monitoring officer of that other authority) 

• has the complaint already been the subject of an investigation or 
other action relating to the Code of Conduct, or has the complaint 
been the subject of an investigation or other regulatory authorities 

• the complaint is about something that happened so long ago that 
there would be little benefit in taking action now 

• the complaint is too trivial to warrant further action 

• the complaint appear to be malicious, politically motivated or tie-for-
tat 

• if the complaint is anonymous EXCEPT in certain circumstances if 
the complaint includes documentary evidence indicating an 
exceptionally serious or significant matter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

i:\documents\nonclient\gov 002-003\165626.doc 
 

50



 

Criteria for Referral to the Standards Board for England 

The Assessment-Committee may refer complaints to the Standards Board for 
England where public interests consideration makes it difficult for the authority to 
deal with the complaint fairly and speedily.  In considering whether to refer a 
complaint the sub-committee should take into account the following: 

• the status of the member or members or the number of members 
complained about eg is the complaint about a group leader, cabinet 
or standards committee member 

• whether the complainant is a group leader, a cabinet or standards 
committee member, the chief executive, monitoring or other senior 
officer 

• whether there a conflict of interest of the monitoring officer or 
members of the standards committee 

• whether the case is so serious or complex that it cannot be handled 
locally, 

• whether the complaint require substantial amount of further 
evidence 

• does the complaint raise significant or unresolved legal issues on 
which a national ruling would be helpful 

• does the complaint relate to long-term or systemic member/officer 
bullying which could be more effectively investigated by someone 
outside the authority 

• whether there are exceptional circumstances which would prevent 
the authority or its standards committee investigating the complaint 
fairly and in a reasonable period of time. 

 

 

 

i:\documents\nonclient\gov 002-003\165626.doc 
 

51



52

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	10 Protocol for Planning Committees
	Appendix - Planning Protocol
	Good Practice Guide - Planning

	11 Establishment of Panel
	12 Ethical Standards
	Appendix B - Ethical Standards - 165152
	Appendix B1 - Complaints - Ethical Standards - 165299
	Appendix C - Ethical Standards - 165149
	Appendix C1 - Ethical Standards - Assessment and Referral Sub
	Appendix D - Ethical Standards - 165626


